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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
The Honorable Mayor and Members of the Town Council, Town of White Castle, Louisiana We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the TOWN OF WHITE CASTLE, LOUISIANA, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2003, as listed in the table of contents as Exhibits A through A-9. These financial statements are the responsibility of the TOWN OF WHITE CASTLE's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these basic financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perfon-n the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and signifcant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the TOWN OF WHITE CASTLE, LOUISIANA, as of September 30, 2003, and the changes in its financial position and the cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Town has implemented a new financial reporting model, as required by the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis -for State and Local Governments, Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis -for State and Local Governments, Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Disclosures and Interpretation No. 6, Recognition and Measurement of Certain Liabilities and Expenditures in Government Fund Financial Statements, as of October 1, 2002. This results in a change in the format and content of the basic financial statements. 
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 25, 2003, on our consideration of the TOWN OF WHITE CASTLE, LOUISIANA's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provision of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit. Management's Discussion and Analysis and budgetary comparison information on Exhibits B through B-1 are not required parts of the basic financial statements, but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consist primarily of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion thereon. Our audit was performed for the purpose of fonning an opinion on the basic financial statements of the Town, taken as a whole. The combining and individual non-major fund financial statements (Exhibit C through C-3) and statistical information (Schedules S-1 through S-12) are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements of the Town of White Castle, Louisiana. The combining and individual nolt- major fund financial statements and statistical information have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2003, and, in our opinion, are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying information on Schedules 1 and 2, pages 59 and 60, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The infomaation has not been audited by us, and accordingly, we express no opinion on this information. 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana November 25, 2003 
Certified Public Accountants 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

]9~h "Y~ 
ALDERMAN: LEONARPJOHNSON GARNELLYOUNG JOHN BARLOW BARBARAO'BEAR KIPP KNtGHT 

As management of the Town of White Castle, we offer readers of the Town of White Castle's (the "Town's") financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the Town's financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003. The emphasis of discussions about these statements will be on current year data. Please read it in conjunction with the Town's financial statements, which begin oll page 14. 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS The Town completed the fiscal year with stable financial position and approaches 2004 with funding that provides a means to address the community needs. A major initiative of the Town is to provide basic services (law enforcement, street maintenance, drainage, and utility services). Significant aspects of the Town's financial well being as of and for the year ended September 30, 2003, are detailed throughout this analysis. Sig4aificant highlights are as follows: ~ Assets of the Town exceeded its liabilities by approximately $6.6 million at the close of the most recent fiscal year. Of this amount, $l ,1 million (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the Town's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. ~ As of September 30, 2003, the Town's governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $812,000. Additionally, approximately $600,000 of this fund balance is cash. ~ At year end, the Town's proprietary fnnds reported net equity of $2.1 million, with approximately $500,000 is cash. USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town's basic financial statements. The Town's basic financial statements consist of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements and 3) notes to the fmaneia~, statements. This report also ~ontains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements. Government-wide financial statements. The government-widefinancial statements are desigmed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Town's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 3 THE TOWN OF WHITE CASTLE IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY PROVIDER AND EMPLOYER 



The statement of net assets presents information on all of the Town's assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving or deteriorating. The statement of activities presents information showing how the Town's net assets changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. 
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (businessTtype activities). The governmental activities of the Town include public safety, streets and sanitation, public health, recreation, and general administration. The business-type activities of the Town include water, gas and sewer services. 
The government wide financiaI statements can be found on pages 14 and 15 of this report. 
Fund f'mancial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Town can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds. Governmental fimds are used to account for essentially the stone functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near term financial requirements. Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government- wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. The Town maintains six individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statements of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, 



Sales Tax Fund and 1992 Sinking Fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other three governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements in Exhibit C-I and C-2. 
The Town adopts an annual budget for its general fund and special revenue funds, as required by law. Budgetary comparison statements have been provided for the General Fund and Sales Tax Fund to demonstrate compliance with these budgets. 
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on Exhibit A-2 through A-5 of this report. The Town maintains three proprietalTfimds used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide statements. The Town uses proprietary funds to account for its water, gas and sewer operations. 
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as govermnent-wide statements, only in more detail. The proprietary funds financial statements provide separate information for the Gas, Water and Sewer Funds, all of which are considered to be major funds of the Town. The basic proplietary fund financial statements can be found on Exhibit A-6 through A-8 of this report. Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes can be found on Exhibit A-9 of this report. Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the Town's budgetary comparison schedules for its major govenunental funds. The required supplementary information can be found on Exhibit B and B-1 of this report. The combining statements refen'ed to earlier in connection with the non-major governmental funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information on budgetary comparison schedules. Additionally, a detailed budgetary comparison for the General Fund is provided. Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on Exhibit C through C-3 of this report. 
Government-Wide Financial Analysis As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the case of the Town, assets exceeded liabilities by $6,565,719 at the close of the most recent fiscal year. Since the Town implemented GASB Statement No. 34 for 2003, no comparisons have been made for the Government-wide financial statements to 2002. 



A suwanary of the Town's net assets is as follows 

Qm-ent and other assets Capital assets Total assets 

Net Assets September 30, 2003 

Current and other liabilities Long-term liabilities Total liabilities Net assets: Invested in capital assets, net of debt Restricted Unrestricted 
Total net assets 

Governmental Business-type Activities Activites 
$ 866,034 4,411,705 5,277,739 
59,861 758,828 818,689 
3,652,877 242,571 563,602 

$ 747,772 2,606,191 3,353,963 
125,404 1.121.890 

$ 1,613,806 7,017,896 8,631~702 
185~65 1,880,718 1,247,294 2,065,983 

1,484,301 96,948 525,420 $ 4,459,050 $ 2,106,669 
5,137,178 339,519 1,089,022 

At the end of the prior and current fiscal years, the Town had positive balances in all three categories of net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities. The largest portion of the Town's net assets (82%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, improvements, streets, equipment, vehicles, utility systems and furniture and fixtures), less any related debt to acquire those assets that is still outstanding The $564,000 in unrestricted net assets of governmental activities represents the accumulated results of operations. It means that if the Town paid all of the debt, $564,000 would remain. Unrestricted net assets of governmental activities decreased during the year by approximately $263,000. The changes in net assets are discussed later in this analysis. The loss fur 2003 is primarily attributable to the depreciation of the Town's infrastructure, i.e. roads. The current resources received by the Town, through general revenues and taxes, are not sufficient to fund such an expense. Capital outlay, for infrastructure needs, is normally funded through the issuance of long-term debt. 



There was a $95,000 decrease in unrestricted net assets of the Town's business-type activities. This decrease was the result of operating expenses in Waterworks and Sewerage Funds exceeding revenues. The loss was comparable to the $81,000 loss in the prior fiscal year. The loss sustained relates to depreciation of the Town's utility systems. The Town is adjusting its user fees to address these operating losses. However, a significant portion of the Town's water and sewer systems is funded from federal grants. As a result, the depreciation associated with this portion of the system costs are not recouped through user fees. The results of this year's operations for the government as a whole are reported in the Statement of Activities, which is summarized as follows: Changes in Net Assets For the year ended December 31, 2003 Govennnental Business-type Activities Activities Total Revenues: Charges for services Operating grants and contributions General revenues Ad Valoreln taxes Sales taxes Other general revenues Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs Other Total revenues Functions/Program Expenses: General govermnent Public safety Streets and sanitation Public health Recreation Interest on long-terra debt Gas Waterworks Sewerage Total expenses Decrease in net assets before transfers Transfers Decrease ha net assets Net assets - beginning of year Net assets - ending of year 

I02,086 $ 768,406 $ 73,963 
31,988 825,236 51.664 
14,065 12,609 9,339 1.111.611 777.745 
315,485 512,672 417,801 72,496 38,449 47,392 
1,404,295 (292,684) 30,000 (262,684) 4,721,734 

336,719 199,305 306.467 842,491 (64,746) (30,000) (94,746) 2,201,414 

870,492 73.963 
31,988 825,236 51,664 
14,065 21.948 
315,485 512,672 417,801 72,496 38.449 47,392 336,719 199,305 306.467 2,246,787 (357,431) 
(357,431) 6,923,148 $ 4,459,050 $ 2,106,668 $ 6,565,717 



Financial Analysis of Town's Most Significant Funds As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. Analysis of the Town's major funds begins on page 16. The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds - not the Town as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law or by bond covenants. However, the Town Council establishes other funds to control and manage resources for particular purposes or to meet legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and other money. The Town's two kinds of funds--governmental and proprietary--use different accounting approaches. Governmentalfnnds--Most of the Town's basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into mid out of those funds, and the year-end balances that are available for the subsequent year. These funds are reported using the modified accrual accounting method, which measures cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the Town's general government operations and the basic services it provides. Govermnental fund information helps users determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be expended in the near future to finance the Town's programs. The relationship (or differences) between goven~nental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation after the fund financial statements. 
General Governmental Functions The general goverument operations of the Town are accounted for in the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Debt Service Funds. The following is a summary of general governmental operations for 2003 by major fund type: 

Revenues & a'ansfers Expenditures & tl~sfers Surph~s (deficit) Fund balance, September 30, 2002 Fund balance, September 30, 2003 

Genera1 Totals Fund Sales Tax Fund 1992 SMdng Fund 
1,995 $ 1,013 $ 832 $ 150 2,130 1,039 941 150 (135) (26) (109) 
785 38 666 81 
$ 650 $ 12 $ 557 $ 81 

Revenues of the Town's major governmental fund types for 2003 totaled $2.0 million, compared to $2.2 million for the previous year, representing a $206,000 decrease or 10% decrease. 



The majority of the decrease was due to a reduction in sales tax collections in the Sales Tax Fund of approximately $127,000. Another portion of the decrease was intergovernmental revenues, from grants and tobacco revenue, being less in the current year by approximately $50,000. 
Sources of general governmental revenues for all governmental funds are summarized below. 
Source of Revenue Taxes Licenses and permits Intergovernmental Miscellaneous 
Total 

(in thousands) 2003 Revenue Percent 
$ 892 62 91 67 

80% 6% 8% 6% 
00% 

2002 Revenue Percent $ 1,019 56 272 85 
71% 4% 19% 6% 00% 

As noted above, the Town's activities are largely supported by tax revenues, which represent 80% of total govermnental sources. Expenditures of the govemlnental funds decreased by $165,000 in 2003. Expenditures for all governmental funds by each major function are summarized in the following table. 
Ftaacfion 
Gel~-n'al goverr~r~lt Public safety S~:ets and sanitation Public healfll Rl~r~ltion li~t service 

(in thousands) 2003 2002 ExpenN~re 
$ 279 497 220 72 17 190 

Percent 
22% 39% 17% 6% 1% I5% 
100% 

Expenditure 
$ 306 567 160 208 21 194 

Percent 
2I% 39% 11% 14% 1% I3% 

The largest decrease in spending occurred in public health as a grant received fi'om the State of Louisiana in 2002 was not funded in 2003. 



Proprietary Funds - The Town's proprietary funds provide the same information that is reported in the government-wide financial statements as business-type activities, but in a different format. Unrestricted net assets of all three funds decreased during the fiscal year 2003 as shown in the following table. 
Charges for services: Gas Waterworks Sewerage Total revenues Operating Expenses Gas Waterworks Sewerage Total expeoses Other items Net operating loss before transfers 

2003 Revenue Percent 

337 190 260 787 (46) $ (65) 

46% 23% 32% 00% 
44% 25% 34% 02% 

2002 Revenue Percent $ 331 144 242 717 
307 18.6 296 789 -6% (9) -8% $ (82) 

General Fund Budgetary Hiehli~hts 

46% 20% 34% 00% 
43% 26% 41% 10% -j% -11% 

Differences between the General Fund original budget and the final arnended budget are noted on page 50 of this report. Revenue projections were amended to eliminate the line item for intergovenunental grants ($25,000 decrease) and to reduce the expected fines by $10,000 (from $45,000 to $35,000). Also, operating trmasfers from other funds were increased frol-n $635,000 to $785,000. Actual revenues closely min-ored the final budget. Engineering fees associated with a 2004 drainage project were incun'ed in 2003, but were budgeted for 2004. Overall, general governmental expenditures were greater than budget by $48,000. The majority of this overage was in Streets and Sanitation ($46,000), primarily due to unbudgeted expenditures for engineering fees related to a drainage project that was capitalized as construction in progress in the govermnent-wide financial statement but as capital outlay in the General Fund. Finally, the original budget of the Town was amended to increase the appropriation of the Police department by approximately $80,000. This increase was largely the result of costs increases for personnel for overtime and related employee benefits, including retirement and health insurance. 



CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
At the end of 2003, the Town had approximately $7,100,000 invested in a broad range of capital assets, including streets, heavy equipment for street and drainage maintenance, vehicles, computer equipment, office furniture, land, buildings, park facilities, gas and water distribution systems, and sewer treatment system. This amount represents a net decrease of $456,000, or 6.1 percent, over last year, which results from current year depreciation of $505,000 net of additions of $49,000. 

Land nod construction in progress Buildings and systems Equipment and vehicles Improvements other than buildings Infrastructure 
Total assets, net of depreciation 

Capital Assets at Year-end in thousands (net of depreciation) Governmental Business-type Activities Acti'Aties Total 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 

The only major addition in 2003 was engineering costs related to the Boudreaux Street drainage improvement project. These costs are recorded as construction in progress and will not be capitalized mid depreciated until the project is completed, which is expected to be in 2004. The Town's fiscal year 2004 capital budget has expenditures of $119,000 tbr capital projects, principally for drainage improvement projects. The Town has no plans to issue additional debt to finance these projects but expects financing to be provided interest-free through lending from the Parish of Iberville. More detailed information about the Town's capital assets is presented in Note 5 to the financial statements. 



At year-end, the Town had $1,881,000 in bonds and notes outstanding compared to $2,092,000 last year--a decrease of 10 percent--as shown below: in thousands Governmental Business-type Activities Activities 2003 2002 2003 2002 Total 2003 2002 Public improvelnents $ 540 $ 650 $ $ $ 540 $ 650 Certificate of indebtedness 140 171 140 171 Lease payable 79 l l 1 79 l I 1 Revenue bonds 1,122 1,160 1,122 1,160 $ 759 $ 932 $ 1,122 $ 1,160 $ 1,881 $ 2,092 No new debt was issued during 2003. The Town retired approximately $211,000 in debt during 2003. More detailed infmznation about the Town's long-term liabilities is presented in Note 6 to the financial statements. 
The State of Louisiana limits the amount of general obligation debt that municipalities can issue to 35 percent of the assessed value of all taxable property within the Town's corporate limits. The Town's outstanding general obligation debt is significantly below this $1.616 million state-imposed limit. ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET The Town's elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2004 budget and tax rates. One of those factors is the economy. 
A number of companies engaged in oil refining and petrochemical processing are found in the industrial corridor along the Mississippi River in and around the Town of White Castle. These industries are major employers of the Town's labor force. Other important industries include construction and fanning. The following indicators were taken into account when adopting the General Fund budget for 2004. Amounts available for appropriation in the General Fund budget are $997,000, a decrease of 2 percent over the final 2003 budget of $1,020,000. Property taxes, licensing fees, and other items are expected to remain constant for the General Fund. Grant and fines income is expected to increase $70,000. Operating transfers in are expected to decrease, especially from the Sales Tax Fund. The Town will use these revenues to finance programs currently offered. Budgeted expenditures are expected to remain the same at $992,000. If these estimates are realized, the Town's governmental budgetary fund balances are expected to decrease in 2004 by $45,000, of which $70,000 relates to the drainage improvement project referred to above in the Capital Assets section. Finally, the Town is anticipating a decrease of $50,000 in sales tax collections during 2004. The Town has added no major new programs in the 2004 budget. 



OTHER INFORMATION 
Contactin~ The Town's Financial Management This financial report is designed to provide the Town's citizens, taxpayers, customers, granting agencies and investors and creditors with a general overview of the Town's finances and to show accountability for the money it administers. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Town's Finance Office at P.O. Box 488, White Castle, LA 70788 or (225) 545-3012. 

The State of Louisiana by law requires a comprehensive annual audit to be performed by a finn of certified public accountants. The Town'S financial statements have been audited by Faulk & Winkler, LLC. Our auditor has provided assurance in their independent auditors' report, located immediately preceding this Management's Discussion and Analysis, that the Basic Financial Statements, are fairly stated. Varying degrees of assurance is being provided by the auditor regarding the Required Supplelnental Infonnation and the Supplemental Infonnation. A user of this report should read the independent auditors' report carefully t~3 ascertain the [e~,e[ of assurance 13ei~g provided for each part of this report. 



TOWN OF WHITE CASTLE, LOUISIANA 

ASSETS Cash and cash equivalents Investments, at cost Accounts receivable, net Due from other governmeats Intemai balances Restricted cash Inventories, at cost Capital assets: Non-depreciable Depreciable, net Total assets 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

LIABILITIES Accounts payable Payroll and other accrued liabilities Customer deposits Deferred revenue Non-current liabilities Due within one year Due in more than one year Total liabilities NET ASSETS Invested in capital assets, net of related debt Restricted for: Capital projects Debt service Unrestricted Total net assets Total liabilities and net assets 

September 30, 2003 

Exhibit A 

Governmental Business-type Activities Activities Total 
600,245 185,785 
69,954 10,050 
300,152 4,111,553 

$ 460,322 58,215 68,777 (lO,O5O) 165,8o6 4,702 
40,588 2,565,603 

1,o6o,567 244,000 68,777 69,954 
165,8o6 4,702 
340,740 6,677,156 $ 5,277,739 $ 3,353,963 $ 8,631,702 

26,774 $ 29,862 
3,225 
176,802 582,026 818,689 

32,178 $ 24,368 68,858 
39,753 1,082,137 1,247,294 

58,952 54,230 68,858 3,225 
216,555 1,664,163 2,065,983 

3,652,877 1,484,301 5,137,178 
242,571 563,602 
4.459.050 

54,303 42,645 525.420 2,106,669 $ 5,277,739 $ 3,353,963 
Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an intgral part of this statement. 14 

54,303 285,216 1,089,022 
6,565,719 $ 8,631,702 



TOWN OF WHITE CASTLE, LOUISIANA STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES For the year ended September 30, 2003 

Fun. ctions/Pro~rams GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES General govermnent $ 315,485 ~ Public safety 512,672 Streets and sanitation 417,80 i Public health 72,496 Recreation 38,449 Interest on long-term debt 47,392 

Program Revenues 

Exhibit A- 1 

Net(Expense) Revenneand Chan~esin Net AssNs Operating Charges for Grants and Governmental Business-type Services Contribution Activities Activities Total 
$ 64,200 $ 15,520 37,886 12,051 46.392 

Total governmental activities $ 1,404,295 102,086 BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES Gas Waterworks Sewerage 336,719 352,291 199,305 172,770 306,467 243,346 Total business-type activities 842,491 768,407 

73.963 

Total primary government $ 2,246,787 $ 870,493 $ 73,963 
GENERAL REVENUES Taxes: Ad valorem Sales and use Franchise Beer Video poker Grants and contribution not restricted to specific programs Investment earnings Transfers (to) from other funds 

S (235,765) (462,735) (417,801) (26,104) (38,449) (47,392) (1,228,246) 

(235,765) (462,735) (417,801) (26,104) (3 8,449) (47,392) (1,228,24{ 
15,572 15,572 (26,535) (26,535) (63,121) (63,121) 

31,988 825,236 34,647 4,063 12,954 

(74,084) (74,084). 

14,065 12,609 9,339 30,000 (30,000) 

31,988 825,236 34,647 4,063 12,954 14,065 21,948 
Total general revenues and transfers 965,562 (20,661) 944,901 Change in net assets NET ASSETS Beginning of year Ending of year 

(262,684) (357,429) 
4,721,734 2,201,414 6,923,148 $ 4,459,050 $ 2,106,669 $ 6,565,719 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an integral part of this statment 15 
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TOWN OF WHITE CASTLE, LOUISIANA 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS September 30, 2003 

Total net assets reported for governmental activities ill the statement of net assets are different because: Total fiand balances - governmental funds (Exhibit A-2) 
Capital assets used in govennnental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds Long-term liabilities (e.g. bonds, leases), are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the govenunental funds. Accrued interest payable Bonds and capital lease payable 
Net assets of governmental activities (Exhibit A) 

Exhibit A-3 

811,898 
4,411,705 

$ (5,725) (758,828) (764,553) 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an integral part of this statement 17 

$ 4,459,050 
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TOWN OF WHITE CASTLE, LOUISIANA Exhibit A-5 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES For the year ended September 30, 2003 

The change in net assets reported for governmental activities in the statement of activites is different because: 
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Exhibit A-4) Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the statmnent of activities the cost of those assets are allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation. Capital outlay Depreciation expense Tile issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to govenunental funds. In the statement of net assets, however, issuing debt increases long-term liabilities and does not affect the statement of activities. Similarly, repayment of principal is an expendutare in the govenmlental funds but reduces the liability in the statement of activities. Principal payments on debt Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in govermnental fi.mds. Accrued interest payable Change in net assets of goverrunental activities (Exhibit A-l) 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an integral part of this statement. 19 

(133,65l) 
$ 28,869 (332,121) (303,252) 

t73,010 
1.209 



 

ASSETS cURRENT ASSETS Cash and cash equivalents Investlxlents, at cost Accounts receivable, net Due fronl other funds Inventories, at cost Total curent assets RESTRICTED ASSETS, cash FIXED ASSETS, net Total assets 

TOWN OF WHITE CASTLE, LOUISIANA 

LIABILITIES CURRENT Accounts payable Payroll and related payables Due to other funds Other accrued liabilities Current portion of long-term debt Total current liabilities Payable from restricted assets Customer deposits Long-term debt 
Total liabilities 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

NET ASSETS Invested in capital assets, net of related debt Restricted for debt service Restricted for capital projects Unrestricted Total net assets Total liabilities and net assets 

September 30, 2003 

Exhibit A-6 

Gas Waterworks Sewerage Utility Fund Utility Fund Utility Fund Total 
18,770 15,387 18,336 120,296 13,919 28,454 2,869 1,730 2,972 154,223 41,092 40.066 235,381 
16,290 18,469 8,06l 2,379 

168,510 45.636 
$ 721.156 

221,256 28,909 21,987 
272.152 79.078 2.059.115 

460,322 58,215 68,777 2,869 4.702 594,885 165,806 2,606.191 $ 2,410,345 $ 3,366,882 
7,944 $ 1,032 2,429 2,176 3.131 

7,944 $ 312 2.429 36.622 
32,178 19,813 12,919 4,555 39.753 45,199 16,712 47,307 109,218 

41,092 27,766 68,858 205,467 876,670 1,082,137 86,291 . 249,945 923,977 1,260,213 
40,066 
109.024 149.090 $ 235,381 

298,412 3,476 14,394 154.929 
1,145,823 39,169 39,909 261_467 

1,484,301 42,645 54,303 525.420 471,211 1,486,368 2,106,669 $ 721,i56 $ 2,410,345 $ 3,366,882 
Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an integral part of this statement. 20 



TOWN OF WHITE CASTLE, LOUISIANA Exhibit A-7 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

OPERATING REVENUES Charges for services Other Total operating revenues OPERATING EXPENSES Gas Depreciation Field Administration Total operating expenses Operating income (Toss) NON-OPERATING Interest income Interest expense Total non-operating, net Income (loss) before operating transfers OPERATING TRANSFERS Operating transfers out Net loss RETAINED EARNINGS Begirming balance 
Ending balance 

For file year ended September 30, 2003 Gas Utility Fund Waterworks Utility Fund 350,555 $ 1.736 
Sewerage Utility Fund 171,326 $ 1.444 243,079 267 352,29I 172,770 243,346 

69,395 6,710 81,929 78.685 336.719 15.572 
2,434 
2,434 

27,452 86,338 76,071 189.861 
139,534 31,700 89.098 

Total 764,960 3.447 
768.407 
169,395 173,696 199,967 243.854 786.912 (17,091) (16,986) (18,505) 

2,333 (9,444) 4,572 (46,135) 9,339 (55,579) (7,11 I) (41,563) (46,240) 18,006 (24,202) (58,549) (64,745) 
(30,000) (11,994) (30,000) (24,202) (58,549) (94,745) 
161.084 495.413 149.090 1,544,917 2,201,414 $ 471,211 $ 1,486,368 $ 2,106,669 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an integral part of this statement. 21 
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TOWN OF WHITE CASTLE, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Statement Presentation 

Exhibit A-9 

The financial statements of the Town of White Castle, Louisiana (the Town) have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements (Staten:ents and Interpretations). Proprietary funds apply Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails. The more significant accounting policies established in GAAP and user by the Town are described below. In June 1999, the GASB approved Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis -for State and Local Governments. Certain of the significant changes in the Statement include the following: 
~ For the first time the financial statements include o A Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section providing an analysis of the Town's overall financial position and results of operations. o Financial statements prepared using full accrual accounting for all of the Town's activities, including infrastructure (roads, bridges, etc.). ~ A change in the fund financial statements to focus on the major funds These and other changes are reflected in the accompanying financial staten:ents (including notes to financial statements). The Town has elected to implement the general provisions of the statement in the current year. 
Reporting Entity These financial statements present the Town as the primary government. For financial reporting purposes, the Town is controlled by or dependent on the Town's executive or legislative branches (the Mayor or the Town Council, respectively). Control by or dependence on the Town is determined on the basis of budget adoption, taxing authority, outstanding debts secured by revenues or general obligations of the Town, obligations of the Town to finance any deficits that may occur, or receipt of significant subsidies from the Town. 



 
Exhibit i-9 Continued NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) Reporting entity (continued) The following related organization, a non-profit corporation, is not part of the Town and thus is excluded from the accompanying financial statements: 

White Castle Housing Authority White Castle Housing Authority's (the Authority) operating and capital expenditures, including debt service, are financed from federal grants and tenant rentals. The Town has no involvement in the determination of the Authority's budget, rental rates, or any obligation for the Authority's outstanding debt. Financial transactions between the Town and the Authority, reported in the accompanying financial statements, reflect contractual agreements between the parties for the provision of specific services by the Town for the Authority. A financial statement for this agency can be obtained from Mr. Don O'Bear, Executive Director, P.O. Box 58, White Castle, Louisiana 70788. 
Basis of Presentation The Town's basic financial statements consist of the govermnent-wide statements of the primary government (the Town) and the fund financial statements (individual major funds and combined non-major funds). The Town's financial statements are prepared in accordmace with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and applied to governmental units. Private sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the GASB. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to the same limitation. The Town has elected not to follow subsequent private- sector guidance. 
Government-wide Financial Statements The govermnent-wide financial statements include the statement of net assets and the statement of activities for all non-fiduciary activities of the Town. As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. The govenarnent-wide presentation focuses primarily on the sustainability of the government as an entity and the change in aggregate financial position resulting from the activities of the fiscal period. These statements distinguish between the governmental mad business-type activities of the Town. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovemmental revenues, and other nonexchange revenues. The Town's gas, water, and sewer services are classified as business-type activities. Business type activities are financed in whole or part by fees charged to external parties for utility services provided. 



 
Exhibit A-9 Continued NOT]E 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) Government-wide Financial Statements (continued) The government-wide statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include: (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or business-type activity, and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. Fund Financial Statements The fund financial statements are very similar to the traditional government fund statements as prepared by goveminents prior to the issuance of GASB No. 34. Emphasis is now on the major funds in either the governmental or business-type categories. Non-major funds (by category) or fund type are summarized into a single colulnn. The daily operations of the Town continue to be organized on the basis of funds and account groups, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-bff, ancing accounts that ~omprise its assets, liabilities, equity, revenues and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Funds are organized into three major categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. The Town does not have any fiduciary funds. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the govennnental and proprietary categories. A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the Town (the General Fund) or meets the following criteria: ~ Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expense of that individual governmental fund or enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or type; and ~ Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expense of that individual govemmetltal fund or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all govermnental and enterprise funds combined. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be expended and the means by which spending activities are controlled. The various funds and account groups of the primary government presented in the financial statements are described as follows: 
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Exhibit A-9 Continued NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) Governmental Fund Types Governmental funds are those through which most guvemmental functions of the Council are financed. The acquisition, use, and balances of expendable financial resources and related liabilities of the Parish are accounted for through governmental funds. Measurement is focused upon deternaining changes in financial position, rather than net income. The following are the governmental fund types of the Town: General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. It is used to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The general fund is always a major fund. 

Special Revenue Funds -SpeciaI revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. The special revenue fund that is considered a major fund is the Sales Tax Fund. 
Debt Service Funds - Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest and related costs. The debt service fund that is considered a major fund is the 1992 Sinking Fund. Capital Projects Funds - Capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by Proprietary Funds). The Town does not cun'ently have any capital project funds. Proprietar.v Fnnd Types" Enterprise Funds - Enterprise funds are used to account for operations (1) that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is that the costs and expenses, including depreciation, of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (2) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes. All of the Town's enterprise funds have been considered major funds. InternalService Funds - Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods and services provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the government and to other government units, on a cost reimbursement basis. The Town does not currently have any internal service funds. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation of capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 27 



 
Exhibit A.-9 Continued NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus Government-wide financial statements The government-wide fnancial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized in the year for which they are levied. Fund financial statements All govermnental funds are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only cmTent assets and current liabilities are generally included in the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other uses) in net current assets. Governmental funds are maintained on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Governmental fond revenues resulting from exchange transactions are recognized in the fiscal year in which the exchange takes place and meets the govermnent's availability criteria (susceptible to accrual). "Available" means collectible within the current period or within 60 days afier year-end. Charges for services, fines and forfeitures, and most goverumental miscellaneous revenues, are recorded as earned since they are measurable and available. Nonexchange transactions, in which the Town receives value without directly giving value in return, includes sales tax, ad valorem tax, federal and state aid and grants. Ad valorem taxes are recorded in the year the taxes are assessed. Ad valorem taxes are assessed on a calendar year basis, become due on November 15th of each year, and become delinquent after Decelnber 31st. The taxes are generally collected ill December of the current year and January and February of the following year. Sales taxes are recorded when in the possession of the intermediary collecting agent and are recognized as revenue at that time. Federal and state aid and grants are recorded as revenue when the Town is entitled to the funds, generally corresponding to when grant related costs are incurred by the Town. Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable, except for (1) unmatured interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due, and (2) claims and judgments and compensated absences are recorded as expenditures in the governmental fund type when paid with expendable financial resources. Allocations of costs such as depreciation and amortization are not recognized in the governmental funds. All proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources lneasurement focus. Proprietary funds are maintained on the accrual basis of accounting wherein revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they are earned and become measurable, and expenses are recognized in the period incurred, if measurable. 



Exhibit A-9 Continued NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) Cash and Cash Equivalents A consolidated bank account has been established into which most monies are deposited and from which most disbursements are made. In addition, investment purchases are charged and maturities are deposited to the consolidated bank account. The purpose of this consolidation of bank accounts is to provide administrative efficiency and to maximize investment earnings. The account entitled "Cash and cash equivalents" is therefore composed of a fund's pro rata share of the cash balance in the consolidated cash account as well as its pro rata share of certificates of deposit with maturities of three months or less. Each fund shares pro rata the investment earnings according to its average cash balance. In addition, separate accounts have been established for certain debt service funds as required by bond resolution and compliance laws. The Town also has an ilnprest account for disbursements of payroll. For purposes of the statelnent of cash flows, liquid investments of the enterprise funds, including restricted assets, with a maturity of three months or less are considered to be cash equivalents. Investments Investments, which are time certificates of deposit with maturities in excess of three months, are stated at cost, which is market value. Accounts Receivable Ia the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received. Uncollectible amounts due for receivables are recognized as bad debts directly charged off at the time information becomes available which indicates that the particular receivable is not collectible. In governmental fund types, the uncollectible amount is charged directly to the revenue reported. On the other hand, in proprietary fund types, the uncollectible amount is recognized as a bad debt expense. Interfund receivables/payables During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds. Those related to short-term borrowings are classified as "due from other funds" or "due to other funds" on the balance sheet and result primarily from participation in the consolidated cash account. Interfund receivables and payables between funds within govermnental activities are eliminated in the Statement of Net Assets. See Notes 10 and 11 for details of interfund transactions, including receivables and payables at year-end. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances." 



 
Exhibit A-9 Continued NOT]E 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) Restricted Cash 

Customer deposits Reserved for debt service Reserved for contingencies 
Total restricted cash 

$ 41,092 $ 27,766 $ $ 68,858 3,476 39,169 42,645 14,394 39,909 54,303 
$ 41,092 $ 45,636 $ 79,078 $ 165,806 Inventories In the primary government's governmental fired types, inventories of supplies are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase. Inventories related to the primary government's business-type activities are stated at cost that approximates market value, using the first-in, first-out method. Capital Assets The accounting treatment of property, plant, and equipment (fixed assets) depends on whether the assets are used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements. 

Government-wide Statements In the government-wide financial statements, fixed assets are accounted for as capital assets. All fixed assets are valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual is unavailable, except for donated fixed assets which are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are expensed, hnprovements are capitalized. Prior to October 1, 2002, governmental These assets are comprised of the streets estimated historical cost. funds' infrastructure assets were not capitalized. maintained by the Town and have been valued at 
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Exhibit ~-9 Continued NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) Capital Assets (continued) 

Buildings Improvements Machinery and Equipment Utility System Infrastructure Fund Financial Statements 

25-40 years 15-30 years 5-20 years 5-50 years 20-40 years 
In the fuud financial statements fixed assets used in governmental fund operations are not capitalized. Instead, capital acquisition and constructioa are reflected as expenditures ia the governmental funds. Property, plant and equipment used by the proprietary funds are stated at cost. Interest costs incurred during construction periods are capitalized. Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives of the assets using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives are as follows: Distribution systems Meters Machinery, equipment and vehicles Long-term Debt 

5 - 50 years 5 years 5 years 
The accounting treatment of long-term debt depends on whether the assets are used in govetTmlental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements. 
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Exhibit A~-9 Continued NOT]E 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) Compensated Absences All full time employees of the Town are entitled to annual vacation and sick leave with pay. Vacation leave entitlement does not carry over from one year to another. Employees are able to accrue unused sick leave without limitation; however, the Town is only liable to pay an employee who was employed by the Town prior to January 1, 1982, any unused sick leave not to exceed (60) days upon retirement. The liability for these compensated absences is recorded as long-term debt in the government-wide statements. The current portion of this debt is estimated based on historical trends. In the fund financial statements, vacation and sick leave payments are included in expenditures for governmental fund types when the payments are made to employees. The proprietary funds present on an accrual basis the amount of earned but unused sick leave estimated to be payable in future periods. Net Assets Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt consist of capital assets, net of accunmlated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of any debt proceeds used for the acquisition, construction, or improvements of those assets. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use by external parties such as creditors, grantors, laws or regulations of other governments. 

Reserves and Designations of Equity Some portions of fund balance and/or retained earnings are reserved to indicate that a portion of equity is legally restricted to a specific future use and is not available for appropriation or expenditure. 
Designated portions of fund baIance and\or retained earnings indicate tentative future spending plans, which may be changed and are subject to subsequent authorization before expenditures can be made. The Town has made the following reserves and designations of equity: (a) Designated for subsequent year's expenditures is that portion of fund balance which has been budgeted to balance the following years' budgets, and (b) other designations are made for specific indicated purposes included in the title. Interfund Transfers Transfers between funds are included in the budgets of such funds. In those cases where repayment is expected, the advances are accounted for through the various inteffund accounts. Budget Policy and Budgetary Accounting A proposed budget is prepared and submitted to the Mayor and Board of Aldermen prior to the beginning of each fiscal year. A budget summary and notice of a public hearing is published with the public hearing being conducted prior to the commencement of the budget year. 

32 



Exhibit A.-9 Continued NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) Budget Policy and Budgetary Accounting (continued) The annual operating budget, prepared on the accrual basis, covers the general, special revenue, debt service funds, capital projects and enterprise funds. At the end of the fiscal year, unexpended appropriations automatically lapse. Budget amendments are approved by the Town Council and are included in the financial statements. In connection with budget preparation, a portion of the um-eserved fund balance of an individual fund may be designated for expenditures of the subsequent year. Such designation represents the extent to which the fund balance is used to balance the subsequent year's operating budget of that fund, as reflected in the legally adopted budget. 
Estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estirnates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. They lnay also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses of proprietary funds and the government-wide financial statements during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates are used primarily when accounting for depreciation, prepaid insurance, and deferred revenue. NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
At year-end, the Town's deposits (including demand deposit accounts, certificates of deposit, and restricted cash) totaled $1,470,373 and the related bank balances were $I,492,527. The bank balance is categorized as follows: Category 1 - Amount insured by the FDIC $ 300,000 Category 2 - Amount collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department in the Town's name 257,394 Category 3 - Amount uncollateralized 48,015 Investments not subject to categorization: Louisiana Asset Managelnent Pool (LAMP) 887,118 Total Investment by the Town in the LAMP pools are considered unclassified as to credit risk because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book form. 

33 



NOTE 3 - DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS Due from other govermnents at September 30, 2003, consists of the following: 
Parish of Iberville, Louisiana - Sales Tax Housing Authority Other Total NOTE 4 - AD VALOREM TAXES 

$ 46,051 15,520 8,384 

Exhibit A.-9 Continued 

The 1974 Louisiana Constitution (Article 7 Section 18) provided that land and improvements for residential purposes be assessed at 10% of fair market value; other property and electric cooperative properties, excluding land, are to be assessed at 15%; and public service properties, excluding land, are to be assessed at 25% of fair market value, Fair market value is determined by the elected assessor of the parish on all property subject to taxation except public service properties, which are valued by the Louisiana Tax Commission (LRS 47:1957). The con'ectness of assessments by the assessor is subject to review and certification by the Louisiana Tax Commission. The assessor is required to reappraise all property subject to taxation at intervals of not more than four years. All property taxes are recorded in govenunental funds, and as explained in Note 1 above, revenues in governmental funds are recognized in the accounting period in which they be come available and measurable. Property taxes are considered measurable in the calendar year of the tax levy. Accordingly, the taxes assessed for the calendar year falling within the current fiscal year are recorded as revenue. Property taxes are considered available because they are substantially collected by the tax collector within 60 days subsequent to the calendar year-end and are therefore available to liquidate liabilities of the cunent period. 
For the year ended September 30, 2003, taxes of 7 mills for the general fund were levied on property with assessed valuations totaling $4,617,770. Total taxes of $32,324 were levied on November 1, 2002, and were due and payable prior to December 31, 2002. 



Exhibit A.-99 Continued NOTE 5 - FIXED ASSETS A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended September 30, 2003, is as follows: 
Governmental activities: Capital assets not being depreciated: Land Construction in progress Total capital assets, not being depreciated Capital assets being depreciated: Buildings and improvelnents Equipment and vehicles Improvements other than buildings Infrastructure Total capital assets being depreciated Less accumulated depreciation for: Buildings and improvements Equipment and vehicles Improvements other than buildings Infrastructure Total accumulated depreciation 

Beginning Balance Increases Decreases 
$ 272,333 $ 27,819 
$ 1,450,194 1,058,221 359,170 5,989,767 8,857,352 
450,364 849,330 21~513 2,904,521 4.414.728 

$ 050 
050 

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net $ 4,442fi24 $ (331,071) Governmental activities capital assets, net Business-type actMties: Capital assets not being depreciated: Land Capital assets being depreciated: Distribution systems MachineD', equipment and vehicles Meters Total capital assets being depreciated Less accumulated depreciation for: Distribution systems Machinery, equipment and vehicles Meters Total accumulated depreciation Total capital assets being depreciated, net 

$ 4,714,957 $ (303,252) $ 

$ 4,854,302 $ 198,287 84.420 5,137.009 
2,215,501 126,273 76,462 2,418,236 

$ 
19,266 1.260 20,526 
146,193 24,844 2,659 173.696 

Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 2,759,361 $ (153,170) $ 
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Ending Balance 
272,3 3 3 27,819 
$ 1,450,194 1,059,27I 359,1 70 5,989,767 8,858,402 
511,207 882,124 218,734 3,134,784 4,746,849 $ 4,111,553 $ 4,411,705 

4,854,302 217,553 85.680 5,157,535 
2,361,694 151,117 79.121 2,591,932 $ 2,565,603 $ 2,606,191 



NOT]E 5 - FIXED ASSETS 
Exhibit A~-9 Continued 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: Governmental activities General government Public safety Recreation Streets and sanitation 
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities NOTE 6- LONG-TERM DEBT 
Debt Outstanding 

$ 37,482 40,468 21,008 233,t63 
$ 332,t21 

The following is a summary of lollg-tenn debt transactions of the Town for the year ended September 30, 2003: 

Governmental activities: Public improvement Certificate of indebtedness Lease payable 
Business-type activities: Revenue bonds 

Balance Beginning of Year Deletions Balance End of Due Within Year One Year 
$ 650,000 $ 110,000 $ 540,000 $ 120,000 171,000 31,000 140,000 32,000 110,838 32,010 78,828 24,802 $ 931,838 $ 173,010 $ 758,828 
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$ 37,831 



NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
Exhibit A.-9 Continued 

Long-term debt obligations for governmental activities at September 30, 2003, is comprised of the following: Public Improvement Bonds $1,440,000 Public Improvement Bonds secured by a pledge and dedication of the 2/3% sales and use tax levied and collected by the Parish of Iberville and allocated to the Town, due in annual installments through March 1, 2007 interest varying from 6.2% - 6.5%. Certificates of Indebtedness $300,000 Certificates of Indebtedness secured by a pledge and dedication of annual revenues, due in annual installments through June 1, 2007; interest at 6% Capital Leases $138,361 Capital leases (2) secured by equipment and a vehicle, due in annual installments through July 30, 2007, interest varying from 5.9% - 6.2% 
Total long-term debt from governmental activities 

$ 540,000 

$ 140,000 

78,828 $ 758,828 
Long-term debt obligations for the primary governlnent for business-type activities at September 30, 2003, is comprised of the following: 
Revenue Bonds $1,077,500 Sewer Revenue Bonds secured by a pledge and dedication of sewer revenues, due in monthly instalhnents through May 25,2019; interest at 5%. $ 818,455 $98,000 Sewer Revenue Rehabilitation Bonds secured by a pledge and dedication of sewer revenues, due in monthly installments through June 25, 2039; interest at 4.5% 94,837 $225,800 advanced on $230,000 authorized Water Revenue Bonds secured by a pledge and dedication of water revenues, due in monthly installments through March 20, 2038; interest at 4.75% Total long-term debt business-type activities 
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208,598 $ 1.121.89~ 



NOTE 6 -LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
Debt Service Requirements to Maturity 

Exhibit A-9 Continued 

The annual requirements to amortize debt outstanding at September 30, 2003, are as follows 
Year 

Govenmx:ntal Activities Public hrprovem~t Bonds 
213O4 $ 120,000 2005 130,000 2O06 I40,000 2007 150,000 

Year 
2004 2005 2O06 2007 2008 2009-2013 20162018 2019-2023 2~2~8 2029-2033 2034-2038 2039 

Interest 
$ 31,200 23,075 14,300 4,875 

Certificates of hxtebtedness Principal 
$ 32,000 34,00O 36,000 38,000 
haterest 
$ 8,400 6,480 4,440 3,771 

capit~ Le~ses 
$ 24,802 19,618 17,465 16,943 
Interest 
$ 4,03l 2,683 1,57I 5O7 

Total Govenarental Activities Long-tram Debt ~pai 
$ 176,802 183,618 193,465 204,943 
Interest 
$ 43,631 3~238 2~311 ~153 

Bushless-Type Activities Setter Revenue Bo~xts IMl~pal $ 36,622 38,490 40,433 42,517 44,685 260,034 333,479 56,946 14,771 18,490 23,145 3,680 

Intet~t 
Water Revcnu~ 8oJ~ls 1551eipal Inte~t $ 44,358 $ 3,131 $ 9,841 42,490 3,289 9,683 40,547 3,443 9,529 38,463 3,610 9,362 36,294 3,785 9,187 144,864 21,870 42,990 71,419 27,716 37,144 15,681 35,131 29,729 11,924 44,528 20,332 8,205 56,414 8,446 3,549 5,681 805 324 

Total Bushless-Type Long-tema Debt l%~cipal $ 39,753 41,779 43,876 46,127 48,470 281,904 361,195 92,077 59,299 74,9O4 28,826 3,680 

Interest $ 54,199 52,I73 5O, O76 47,825 45,481 187,854 108,563 45,410 32,256 16,651 4,354 324 
Normally, debt issues are not retired prior to their maturity. For accounting purposes, interest coupons issued in comaection with the sale of various bond issues become obligations/expenditures of the Town only with the passage of time, and they represent fixed and determinable obligations which must be retired from future revenues. 
There are no outstanding bonds secured by ad valorem taxes of the Town at this time 
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NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) Bond Restrictions 
Sales Tax Bonds 

Exhibit A-9 Continued 

Under the terms of the indenture authorizing the issuance of Public Improvement Bonds - Series 1992, proceeds of the 2/3% sales and use tax, collected by the Parish of Iberville, and allocated to the Town, are pledged and dedicated for the establishment and maintenance of the following bond funds: 
A Public hnprovement Bond - Series 1992 Sinking Fund is to be used for the payment of the principal and interest on outstanding bonds as they become due and payable. Monthly payments are to be equal to the sum of one-sixth of interest falling due on the next interest payment date and one-twelfth of principal due on the next principal payment date. A Public hnprovement Bond - Series 1992 Sales Tax Bond Reselwe Fund is to be used solely for the purpose of paying principal and interest on bonds payable from the Bond Sinking Fund, as to which there would otherwise be default. Requirements for establish- ment of the Fund have been met and no further payments are to be made. 
Certificates of Indebtedness In accordance with the terms of the indenture authorizing the issuance of the certificates of indebtedness, excess revenues are used for the establishlnent of the 1997 Certificates of Indebtedness Sinking Fund. The sinking fund is used for the payment of principal and interest on outstanding debt as it becomes due and payable. Monthly payments are equal to the sum of one-sixth of interest becoming due on the next interest payment date and one-twelfth of principal becoming due on the next principal payment date. Sewer Revenue Bonds 
In accordance with tile indenture governing Sewerage Utility Fund Revenue Bonds, Series 1994 and 1999, cash is periodically deposited into accounts administered by a trustee bank. These bonds are a direct liability of the Sewerage Enterprise Fund to be serviced by the earnings from the Fund. Deposits are made to these trust accounts ill accordance with the requirements of each. 
The Sewer System Revenue Fund requires all revenue derived from its operations to be deposited in a bank that is a member of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation as long as any of the bonds are outstanding. Required transfers are made on a monthly basis to designated trust accounts. In addition, the Series 1999 Bonds required the use of a separate construction account. The Sewer Revenue Bond Fund requires monthly fund transfers from the Sewer System Revenue Fund to provide payment of the next maturing interest and principal of the revenue bonds. 
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NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
Exhibit A-9 Continued 

3. The Sewer Revenue Bond Reserve Fund requires monthly transfers of $338 until $80,980 has been accumulated. This fund is restricted to payment of principal and interest in case of default. The current balance of the fund is $38,615. 4. The Sewer Depreciation and Contingency Fund requires monthly transfers of $323. The Fund is restricted to payments for unusual or extraordinary maintenance, repairs, replacement, and extensions and impmvemeuts that will either enhance its revenue producing capacity or provide improved service. It will also be used to pay principal and interest if there are not sufficient funds in the Sewer Revenue Bond Fund, or Sewer Revenue Bond Reserve Fund. Upon completion of the construction of the improvements financed with the Series 1999 Bonds, the monthly transfer is $346. The current balance of the fund is $39,365. 
The Town of White Castle has complied with the above conditions Water Revenue Bonds 
In accordance with the indenture governing Water Utility Fund Revenue Bonds, cash is deposited into accounts administered by a tLa~stee bank. These bonds are a direct liability of the Water Enterprise Fund to be serviced by the earnings from the Fund. Deposits are made to these trust accounts in accordance with the requirements of each. The Water Revenue Fund requires all revenue derived from the operation of the system be deposited into the Revenue Fund. Required transfers are made on a monthly basis to designated trust accounts. The Water Revelme Bond and Interest Sinking Fund requires monthly transfers from the Water Revenue Fund to provide payment of the next maturing interest and principal of the revenue bonds. The Water Revenue Bond Reserve Fund requires monthly transfers of $46 - $55 until $12,972 has been accunmlated. This Fund is restricted to payment of principal and interest in case of default. The current balance of the fund is $3,476. 4. The Water Depreciation and Contingency Fund requires monthly transfers of $124. The Fund is established to care for extensions, additions, improvements, renewals and replacements necessary to properly operate the system. Such payments into the Fund are to continue over the life of the bonds. The current balance of the fund is $8,060. The Town of White Castle has complied with the above restrictions 



NOTE 7 - DEDICATED REVENUES 
Exhibit A-9 Continued 

Proceeds of the Iberville Parish sales and use tax were dedicated to the following purposes as of September 30, 2003: Opening, constructing, paving, and improving streets, sidewalks, roads and alleys; constructing bridges; purchasing or constructing water works, sewers, drains, drainage canals, pumping plants, sewerage disposal works, light and power plants, gas plants, halls, jails, fire department stations, hospitals, auditoriums, public parks, natatorimns, libraries, docks, wharves, river terminals and other public buildings, including the necessary equipment and furnishings thereof; or for any one or more such purposes. 
Consistent with this dedication, transfers from the Sales Tax Fund are being used to retire the Public hnprovement Bonds - Series 1992. See Note 6. 

NOTE 8 - SEGMENTS OF ENTERPRISE ACTIVITIES Three services, gas, water, and sewerage, are provided by the Town and are financed by user charges. The significant financial data Ibr the year ended September 30, 2003, for those services are as follows: 

Assets: Current assets Restricted assets Capital assets, net Total assets 

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

Liabilities: Current liabilities Due to other funds Payable from restricted assets Long-term debt Total liabilities Net assets: Invested in capital assets, net of related debt Restricted Unrestricted Total net assets 

Gas Waterworks Sewerage Utility Utility Utility 
$ 154,223 $ 168,510 41,092 45,636 40.066 507.010 235,38 
37,138 8,061 41,092 
721.156 
14,283 2,429 27,766 205.467 86,291 249,945 

40,066 __ 109,024 $ 149,090 
298,412 17,870 154,929 471~211 

$ 272,152 79,078 2,059,115 2,410,345 
44,878 2,429 876,670 923,97_77 
1,145,823 79,078 261,46_7 $ 1.486.368 

Tota 
$ 594,885 165,806 2,606,191 3,366,882 
96,299 12,919 68,858 1,082,137 1,260,213 
1,484,301 96,948 __ 525,420 



NOTE 8 - SEGMENTS OF ENTERPRISE ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED) CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
Operating revenues Operating expenses net of depreciation Depreciation Operating income (loss) Non-operating revenue (expense) Operating transfers out Net loss Beginning net assets Ending net assets 

Gas Utility Waterworks Utility_ Sewerage Utility 

Exhibit A_.~9 Co~inued 

Total $ 352,29I $ 172,770 $ 243,346 $ 768,407 
330,009 6.710 15,572 
2,434 __ (30,OOA) (11,994) 161.084 

162,409 27.452 (17,091) (7,111) (24,202) 495.413 $ 149,090 $ 471,211 

120,798 139~534 (16,986) (41,563) (58,549) _ 1,544,917 $ 1.486.368 
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

Net cash provided by (used for): Operating activities Noncapital financing activities Capital and related financing Investing activities Net increase in cash Cash and cash equivalents Beginning of period End of period 

Gas Waterworks Sewerage Utility Utility__ Utility 
$ 37,285 $ (37,953) (4,883) 78,596 73.045 
86.817 $ 159.862 
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6,243 $ (21,458) (13,843) 66.873 37,815 
128,117 

613,216 173.696 (18,505) (46,240) (30,0003 (94,745) 2,201,414 $ 2.106~69 

136,844 $ (18,782) (95,210) 126.269 149,121 
151,213 $ 300,334 

Total 
180,372 (78,193) (I13,936) 271.738 259,98l 
366,147 $ 626.128 



NOTE 9 - PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana 
Exhibit A-9 Continued 

Plan Description - Substantially all employees of the Town are members of the Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (System), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by a separate board of trustees. The System is composed of two distinct plaus, Plan A and Plan B, with separate assets and benefit provisions. All employees of the Town are members of Plan B. Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (Continued) All permanent employees working at least 35 hours per week who are paid wholly or in part frorn Town funds are eligible to participate in the System. Under Plan B, employees who retire at or after age 60 with at least 10 years of creditable service or at or after age 55 with at least 30 years of creditable service are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, equal to 2 percent of their final-average salary multiplied for each year of creditable service. Furthermore, employees with at least one year of creditable service but less than 30 years, may take early retirement benefits commencing at or after age 60, with basic benefits reduced 3 percent for each year retirement precedes age 62. In any case, retirement benefits paid under Plan B cannot exceed $70 per month nmltiplied by total years of creditable service. Final-average salary is the employee's average salary over the 36 consecutive or joined months that produce the highest average. Employees who terminate with at least the amount of creditable service stated above and do not withdraw their employee contributions may retire at the ages specified above and receive the benefit accrued to their date of termination. 
The System also provides death and disability beuefits. Benefits are established or anlended by state statute. The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to the Municipal Employees' Retirement System, 7937 Office Park Boulevard, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809, or by calling (225) 925-4810. Funding Policy. Under Plan B, members are required by state statue to contribute 5 percent of their annual covered salary and the Town is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate (7.75 percent at September 30, 2003). Contributions to the System also include one- fourth of one percent of the ad valorem taxes shown to be collectible by the tax rolls of each parish. These tax dollars are divided between Plan A and Plan B based proportionately on the salaries of the active members of each plan. The contribution requirements of plan members and the Town are established and may be amended by state statute. As provided by Louisiana Revised Statute 11:103, the employer contributions are determined by actuarial valuation and are subject to change each year based on the results of the valuation for the prior fiscal year. The Town's contributions to the system under Plan B for the year ended September 30, 2003, was $20,809. 
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NOT]E 9 - PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED) Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 
Exhibit A.-9 Continued 

Plan Description - Police department employees of the Town are members of the Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (System), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by a separate board of trustees. 
All permanent full-time police officers who are paid wholly or in part from Town police department funds are required to participate in the System. 
Under the plan, officers who retire at or after age 55 with at least 12 years of creditable service or at or after age 50 with at least 20 years of creditable service or any age with at least 25 years of creditable service are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, equal to 3 and 1/3 percent of their final-average salary multiplied for each year of creditable service not to exceed 100 percent of final salary. The System also provides death mad disability benefits. Benefits are established or amended by state statute. The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementa~2~ information for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to the Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System, 8401 United Plaza Boulevard, Suite 270, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809-7017, or by calling (225) 929- 7411. Funding Policy. Under the Plan, members are required by state statue to contribute 7.5 percent of their annual covered salary and the Town is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate (15.25 percent at September 30, 2003). The contribution requirements of plan members and the Town are established and may be amended by state statute. As established by state statute, the employer contributions are determined by actuarial valuation and are subject to change each year based oll the results of the valuation for the prior fiscal year. The Town's contributions to the system under the Plan for the year ended September 30 2003, as $14,459. 



NOTE 10 -INTERFUND TRANSFERS Operating Transfers 
Exhibit A.-9 Continued 

Operating transfers for the year ended September 30, 2003, were as follows: Transfers In Out Governmental Activities: Geueral Fund: Sales Tax Fund Gas Utility Fund Sales Tax Fund: General Fund 1992 Sfl~king Fund 1997 Sinkhlg Fund Nomnajor governmental funds Business-type Activities Gas Fund: General Fund 
NOTE 11 -INTERFUND RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLE BALANCES Interfund balances at September 30, 2003, were as fbllows Governmental Activities: General Fund Gas Utility Fund Waterworks Utility Fund Sewerage Utility Fund Section 8 Fund Sales Tax Fund 1992 Sinking Fund Gas Utility Fund 1992 Sinking Fund Sales Tax Fund Section 8 General Fund Total Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Gas Utility Fund General Fund Sales Tax Fund Waterworks Utility Fund Waterworks Utility Fund General Fund Gas Utility Fund Sewerage Utility Fund General Fund Total Business-type Activities 
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$ 755,000 $ 30.000 755,000 145,000 41,200 191,424 5,224 
$ 976~424 30 000 

42,952 $ 32,902 

2,869 
2,429 2,763 2,869 2,429 
2,429 



NOTE 12 -COMPENSATION TO GOVERNING BODY The Town compensated its Mayor and members of the Town Council as follows Mayor Maurice Brown Board of Aldermen Barbara O'Bear John Desselles Emest Allen Leonard Johnson Gamell Young Kipp Knight John Barlow 
The Town's elected officials temls expire on December 31, 2006 NOTE 13 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES Litigation 

$ 32,808 4,991 1,295 1,295 4,991 4,99I 3,696 3.696 $ 57363 

Exh~itA-9 Continued 

Several suits arising from operation of the police department have been filed against the Town. The cases are covered by insurance; however, the ultimate effect of such litigation cannot be ascertained at this time. It is the opinion of Town management that the ultimate resolution of such litigation will not have a material effect on the financial position of the Town and no accrual has been recorded in the financial statements. The Town is vigorously defending these matters. Grants The Town receives Federal, State and local grants for specific pmlooses that are subject to audit by grantor agencies. Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursement to the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant. It is the opinion of Town management that the Town's compliance with the terms of gTants will result in no disallowed costs. Risk Management The Town is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, mad destruction of assets, errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters for which the Town carries commercial insurance. There were no major changes in insurance coverage from the prior year and settlements have not exceeded coverage in the current year or in the past three years. NOTE 14 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPI,IANCE AND ACCOUNTABLILITY Expenditures Exceeding Appropriations For the year ended September 30, 2003, the General Fund had an excess of expenditures over appropriations of approximately $48,000. 



NOTE 15 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
Exhibit A-9 Continued 

The Town has entered into a cooperative endeavor with the Iberville Parish Council in which the Parish has agreed to incur cost of up to $130,000 related to a drainage project for the Town. This cost incurred by the Parish will be paid back by the Town in 18 equal monthly pa3qnents with no interest. Payments will commence in January 2004. 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



TOWN OF WHITE CASTLE, LOUISIANA GENERAL FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL 

REVENUES Taxes Ad valorem Public utility franchise Cable T.V. franchise License and permits Irttergovemmental Grants Beer Video poker Local housing authority Fines Other Lease and royalty Interest Miscellaneous Total revenues EXPENDITURES General govermnem Public safety Streets and sanitation Public health Recreation Total expenditures Excess of expenditures over revenues OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Operating transfers in Total other financing sources 

For the year ended September 30, 2003 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and other fmancing sources FUND BALANCE Beginning of year End of year 

Original Budget Final Budget 
32,500 $ 24,000 5.650 32,500 24,500 9,650 

Actual 
31,988 24,844 9.803 

Exhibit B 

Variance - favorable (unfavorable) 
(512) 344 153 65,000 65,000 62,075 (2,925) 

25,000 6,200 15,000 18,500 6,200 15,000 18,500 
2,051 4,062 2,954 5,520 

12,05I (2,138) (2,046) (2,980) 45,000 35,000 37,886 2,886 
4,000 500 22.000 
277,487 417,912 153,328 18,000 22,000 888.727 (625,377) 

6,000 500 22,000 234.850 
288,887 497fi37 173,728 18,000 13,500 991,552 (756,702) 

4,150 (1,850) 442 (58) i2,040 (9,960) 227,815 (7,035) 
279,366 496,678 219,681 26,021 17.441 1,039,187 (811,372) 

635.000 785,000 785,000 635.000 785.000 785.000 

9,521 759 (45,953) (8,021) (3,941) (47,635) (54,670) 

9,623 $ 28,298 (26,372) $ (54,670) 
38,589 $ 12 217 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an integral part of this statement. 49 



TOWN OF WHITE CASTLE, LOUISIANA SALES TAX FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL 

REVENUES Taxes lbervilIe Parish sales tax Other Interest 
Total revenues OTHER FINANCING USES Operating transfers out 

For the year ended September 30, 2003 

Original Budget Final Budget Actual 

Exhibit B-1 

Variance - favorable (unfavorable) 
$ 700,000 $ 875,000 $ 825,236 $ (49,764) 
16,000 I6,000 6,609 (9,391) 716,000 891,000 831,845 (59,155) 
(971,200) (941,200) (941,200) Excess (deficiency)ofrevenues over other financing uses $ (255,200) $ (50,200) (109,355) $ (59,155) 

FUND BALANCE Begimfingofyear 
End of year 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an integral part of this statement. 50 

666,465 
$ 557,110 



OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
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TOWN OF WHITE CASTLE, LOUISIANA GENERAL FUND 
STATEMENT OF DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT Salaries Payroll taxes Municipal retirement Employee's insurance Insurance Professional General fixed assets Mahltenance building Publishing Office supplies Dues and subscriptions Coroner Telephone Travel Printing Council on Aging Commissioners Drug testing Maintenance contracts Maintenance - equipment and vehicle Other 
Total general government RECREATION Capital outlay Utilities Materials and supplies Total recreation PUBLIC HEALTH 

For the year ended September 30, 2003 
Original Budget 
55,937 5,500 3,900 20,000 52,000 56,000 7,000 10,000 4,000 5,800 5,500 2,500 9,900 18,000 2,000 7,700 1,500 1,000 3,000 2,000 4,250 277.487 
10,000 4,000 8.000 

Final Budget 
49,937 5,500 3,900 22,000 47,000 56,000 9,000 13,000 4,000 8,300 5,500 2,500 14,900 20,000 2,500 5,000 1,500 1,000 3,000 2.000 

Actua 

Exhibit C 

Variance - favorable (unfavorable) 
47,749 $ 5,664 6,946 22,291 44,268 55,945 3,456 13,791 4,897 5,655 3,245 1,730 14,008 19,663 3,424 8,05I 1,500 847 1,185 3,084 11.968 

2,188 (164) (3,046) (291) 2,732 55 5,544 (791) (897) 2,645 2,255 770 892 337 (924) (3,051) 153 1,815 (I,084) 382 288,887 279,366 9,521 
5,500 8.000 22,000 13,500 18.000 

195 6,533 10.713 
17.441 

(195) (1,033) (2,713) (3,941) $ 18,000 $ 26,021 $ (8,021) 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an integral part of this statement. 52 



PUBLIC SAFETY Police Salaries Payroll taxes Municipal retirement Employee's insurance General fixed assets Vehicle lease Maintenance - vehicle Field supplies Clothing Printing Jail house Drug testing Maintenance - building Vehicle fuel Dues and subscriptions Travel Telephone Maintenance contracts Other Total police Volunteer fire Truck and equipment Maintenance Vehicle fuel Telephone Total volunteer fire Total public safety 

TOWN OF WHITE CASTLE, LOUISIANA GENERAL FUND 
STATEMENT OF DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL For the year ended September 30, 2003 

Original Budget 
249,162 19,000 13,000 55,500 6,000 9,800 4,500 1,000 3,000 1,500 4,500 500 500 10,000 200 5,500 5,000 900 4.100 393.662 
22,000 1,000 900 350 24,250 

Final Budget 
309,162 21,000 16,000 52,500 6,000 9,800 10,000 1,000 4,000 1,500 7,000 500 500 15,000 200 5,500 5,000 900 4.425 469.987 
19,000 6,000 900 1,550 27.450 

Actual 
290,873 21,456 16,145 55,408 576 9,931 13,724 5,687 3,733 618 7,195 250 45O 15,915 5,533 12,782 415 7,332 468.022 
20,968 6,233 65 1,390 

497,437 $ 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an integral part of this statement. 53 

Exhibit C_C Continued 

Variance - favorable (unfavorable) 
$ 18,289 (456) (145) (2,908) 5,424 (131) (3,724) (4,687) 267 882 (I95) 250 50 (915) 200 (33) (7,782) 485 (2,907) 1,965 
(1,968) (233) 835 I60 28,656 (1,206) 496,678 $ 759 



TOWN OF WHITE CASTLE, LOUISIANA GENERAL FUND 
STATEMENT OF DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL 

STREETS AND SANITATION Salaries Employee's insurance Payroll taxes Municipal retirement Insurance Maintenance - equipment Maintenance - street Maintenance vehicle Equipment rental Utilities Vehicle fuel Chemicals Drug testing Engineering Other Total streets and sanitation Total expenses 

For the year ended September 30, 2003 
Original Budget 
59,728 13,500 4,900 1,800 5,000 2,500 3,000 1,000 11,000 44,000 3,200 1,000 2OO 

Final Budget 
72,728 15,000 4,900 3.000 50O 7,000 2,700 11,000 49,000 3,200 2,000 2OO 2,500 2,500 

153,328 888.727 73.728 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an integral part of this statement. 54 

Actual 
80,259 10,122 5,846 2,029 5,637 2,798 11,151 2,685 11,828 53,057 3,834 1,484 163 27,819 968 
219.681 $ 1.039.187 

Exhibit C Continued 

Variance - favorable (unfavorable) 
(7,531) 4,878 (946) 971 (5,637) (2,298) (4,151) 15 (828) (4,057) (634) 516 37 (27,819) 1.532 (45,953) 



ASSETS Cash and cash equivalents Investments, at cost 
Total assets 
LIABILITIES Due to other funds Deferred income 
Total liabilities FUND BALANCE Reseiwed - debt service 

TOWN OF WHITE CASTLE, LOUISIANA NON-MAJOR FUNDS 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET September 30, 2003 
Special Revenue Debt Service 
Section 8 1992 Reserve Fund 1997 Sinking Fund 

Exhibit C- 1 

Total Non-Major Funds 
3,725 $ $ 18,047 $ 21,772 144,000 144,000 
3,725 $ 144,000 $ 18,047 $ 165,772 
500 $ $ $ 3,225 
3.725 

500 3,225 
3,725 

144,000 18,047 162,047 
3,725 $ 144,000 $ 18,047 $ 165,772 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an integral part of this statement, 55 



REVENUES Intergovernmental HUD receipts Other Interest 
Total revenues 

TOWN OF WHITE CASTLE, LOUISIANA NON-MAJOR FUNDS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

EXPENDITURES Public health Rent and utility assistance Administrative Debt service Principal retirement Interest and fiscal charges 
Total expenditures 
Excess of reveuues over expenditures 
OTHER FINANCING USES Operating transfers in Operating transfers out 

For the year ended September 30, 2003 

Excess of revenues over expenditures and other financing sources 
FUND BALANCE Beginning of year 
End of year 

Special Revenue Debt Service 
Section 8 1992Reserve Fund 
46,392 $ 
83 
46.475 
31,593 14,882 
46.475 

1997 Sin~ng Fund 
$ 5,224 

5,224 

Exhibit C2-2 

Total Non-Major Funds 
$ 251 

251 

3 1,000 8.591 
39.591 

46,392 5,558 
51,950 
31,593 14,882 
31,000 8,591 
86,066 

5,224 (39,340) (34,116) 
(5,224) 41,200 41,200 (5,224) 

1,860 1,860 
144,000 16,187 
$ 144,000 $ 18,047 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an integral part of this statement. 56 

160,187 $ 162,047 



TOWN OF WHITE CASTLE, LOUISIANA SECTION 8 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL 

REVENUES Intergovermnenta HUD receipts Other Interest Total revenues 
EXPENDITURES Public health Rent and utility assistance Administrative 
Total expenditures 
Excess of revenues over expenditures 

FUND BALANCE Beginning of year 
End of year 

For the year ended September 30, 2003 
2003 

Exhibit C-3 

Variance - favorable Budget Actual (unfavorable) 
51,500 $ 46,392 $ (5,108) 
500 83 
52,000 46 475 
46,500 5,500 31,593 14,882 

(417) (5,525) 
14,907 (9,382) 52,000 46 475 5.525 

$ $ 

Notes on Exhibit .4.-9 are an integral part of this statement. 57 



SCHEDULES 
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TOWN OF WHITE CASTLE, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SEWERAGE CUSTOMERS September 30, 2003 (Without Audit) 

Schedule 1 

Records maintained by the Town of White Castle indicated the number of residential and commercial users for both water and sewer systems at September 30, 2003 were as follows: 
Residential Commercial 

Water 
716 77 

Sewer 
706 76 At September 30, 2003, the Town was charging a $10.00 commercial and a $7.50 residential base fee with $2.50 for each thousand gallons consumed for water usage. In addition, an $11.75 base fee with $1.40 for each thousand gallons treated was charged as a sewerage fee. At September 30, 2003, the aging of accounts receivable for the Enterprise Funds was as follows 

Cu~ent 31-60 days 61-90 days Over 90 days $ 687,22277 



 

Issuer LA Municipal Risk Management Agent 

TOWN OF WHITE CASTLE, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE IN FORCE September 30, 2003 (Without Audit) Kind of Insurance ProPerty Covered/Address Automobile 
Commercial General Liability 
Law enforcemenl liability Public officials' errors & omissions liability Worker's Compensation Allstale Insurance Commezcial Property Fire and extended coverage 

Fire and extended coverage Firc and extended cox~rage Fire and extended coverage Comlnercialinland marine 

Commercial properly 
Named employew.s bond Public eJnployee honesty bond 

4 Aulomobiles Crown Victoria Equipment on Crown Victoria Ford F-350 Rescue Unit Premises Ops, General Products & Completed Gps Medical Paymenls Fire Legal Liability Enforcement officers Public ollicials' errors & omissions Eligible employees Sewage plant, 31540 I lwy :105 ICM Building, 33060 Bowie SI ICM 13u gding conlents Water toweq 33060 Bowie St. Water treatment building Contents Shed Town Iqa]l ] Fire Slation 32535 Bowie St. Contents Jail bousc, 32535 Rear Bowie Jail house contcnls Fire stalion 32055 Ilwy 405 Fire station contents Council on Aging Building 55050 Lagno St Conlents Building, 32515 Bowie St Contents So.wage statioll, 54940 Camhre St Sewage station, 33440 Bowie St. Sewage station, 34050 Bowie St. Gas generator Radio tower with antenna Diesel generator Kuba tractor Street sweeper Computers Community Center, 32635 Bowie St White Castle Inn, 55035 Cambre St. 
Employees Aldennan I Mayor 

$ 500,000 20,810 5,960 82.000 500,000 500,000 10,000/peraccidenl 50,000~eroccurrence 500,000 500,000 statutory 860,000 47,800 5,000 197,820 45,000 65,000 1,000 
200,000 43,500 I00,000 30,000 69,300 5,000 124,000 I0,000 300,000 25,000 70~00 95,000 35,000 52,000 9,300 10,000 14,990 14,500 14,300 

Schedule 2 
Expiration Date May 1, 2004 February 5, 2004 
Mayl,2004 Mayl,2004 May 1,2004 Mayl,2004 May I, 2004 Mayl,2004 January I, 2004 October 10, 200-4 October I O, 2004 
October I 0, 2004 
October 10, 2004 October I 0, 2004 October I 0. 2004 
October IO, 2004 October I0, 2004 October t0, 2004 October 10, 2004 October 10, 2004 October 10, 2004 

360,000 October 10, 2004 
00,000 25,000 September 13, 2004 August 18, 2004 
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
The Honorable Mayor and Members of the Board of Aldermen, Town of White Castle, Louisiana 
We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the TOWN OF WHITE CASTLE, LOUISIANA, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2003, and have issued our report thereon dated November 25, 2003. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to fi- nancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Compliance 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the TOWN OF WHITE CASTLE, LOUISIANA's general purpose financial statements are free of material misstate- rneut, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determina- tion of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of noncompliance that is required to be reported un- der Government Auditing Standards which is described in the accompanying schedule of find- ings and questioned costs as item 2003-5. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting In planning and performing our audit, we considered the TOWN OF WHITE CASTLE, LOUISIANA's internal control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing pro- cedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the general purpose financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. However, we noted certain matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be reportable conditions. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our atten- tion relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over fi- nancial reporting, that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the entity's ability to record, proc- ess, summarize and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in the general purpose financial statements. Reportable conditions are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2003-1, 2003-2, 2003-3 and 2003-4. 62 
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A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the general purpose financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be report- able conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, the reportable conditions described in the schedule of findings and questioned costs involving internal control over financial reporting are also considered to be material weaknesses as defined above. 
This report is intended solely for the infunnation and use of management, the Town Council, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and the Louisiana Legislative Audi- tor and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana November 25, 2003 
Certified Public Accountants 



TOWN OF WHITE CASTLE, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS For the year ended September 30, 2003 
1) Summary of Auditors' Results A) The type of report issued on the general purpose financial statements: Unqualified opinion. B) Reportable conditions in internal control were disclosed by the audit of Financial Statements: 2003-1, 2003-2, 2003-3 and 2003-4. Material weaknesses: See reportable conditions above. C) Noncompliance that is material to the general purpose financial statements: None D) Findings relating to the financial statements reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards: 2003-5. 2003-1: SEGREGATION OF DUTIES 
Observation: There is not sufficient segregation of duties to have effective internal control. The finding results from the small size of the administrative staff of the Town, which prevents a meaningful segregation of duties. However, during the fiscal year, the Town created a new posi- tion in its finance department to address this condition. As a result, various duties have been re- assigned to reduce the risks previously described with the lack of segregation of duties. Accord- ingly, we continue to recommend the following. Recommendation: We recommend that the Mayor review and approve the following: 
~ Check disbursements and related supporting documentation, ~ Monthly bank statements (including the cancelled checks) and related reconciliation. Management's corrective action plan: We concur with the finding. Additionally, the Town hired an additional employee in October 2002. The additional employee has allowed the Town to assign duties to its financial staff to mitigate the risks associated with a lack of adequate segre- gation of duties. 
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2002-3: FINES 
Observation: The Town's police department collects funds associated with fines. As collected, the funds are forwarded to the Town's administration department for deposit. The Town's police department maintains documentation to support the receipt of these flmds. Based on our review of fine collection documentation, we discovered that the Police Department does not utilize the fine accounting software program in an effective manner. The progyam provides for the account- ing of the numerical sequence of traffic tickets issued to police officers. This portion of the software program is not being utilized and the Town is not maintaining control over the issuance of its traffic tickets. As a result, the Town is not providing for adequate control over these decen- tralized cash collections. Recommendation: We recommend that traffic ticket issuance records be maintained accurately by utilizing computer software in place, to include the preparation of monthly reconciliation of ticket issuance records, voided tickets and outstanding tickets with police officers. Additionally, assessed but uncollected fines should be recorded in the system to provide for the adequate con- trol of the collection of traffic fines. Managcmcnt's corrective action plan: Management intends to acquire the necessary training needed for the employee to fully utilize the software. Secondly, such reports will be reviewed monthly by the Town clerk for appropriateness. 2003-3 CONFISCATED GOODS INVENTORY 
Observation: An inventory of confiscated items made by the Police Department was not per- fort-ned during the years ended September 30, 2003 and 2002. 
Recommendation: We recommend the Town's Finance Department maintain an on-going in- ventory of confiscated materials. Management's corrective action plan: The Town's Police Department has initiated steps sub- sequent to year-end to ensure an accurate inventory of confiscated material. 

2003-4 CHECK DISBURSEMENTS 
Observation: During our review of check disbursements during 2003, we discovered the fol- lowing: Several check disbursements were voided and defaced in a separate file. However, a few of the checks were not voided in the accounting system and were reported as expendi- tures, A few instances of duplicate payments were issued to the Town's natural gas supplier. The overpayment resulted from the Town receiving a faxed and mailed copy of each monthly invoice. In a few cases, both invoices were paid. The Town was either provided a refund check or reduction to the subsequent months billing in a timely manner from the supplier. As a result, no overpayments were outstanding at year-end. 



Recommendation: The Town Clerk should review check disbursements listed as outstanding on the monthly bank reconciliation for checks that are susceptible to being voided and remove from the accounting system in a timely manner. Secondly, the Town should review its procedures for payment of invoices. In the case with the natural gas vendor, the faxed copy of the invoice should be discarded and the bard copy used for accounts payable processing. 
Blanagement's corrective action plan: Management intends to implement the following: 
The procedure for voided check disbursements in the Town's accounting system was re- visited. The correct procedure for voiding disbursements was previously not followed. As a result, such instances in the future are not expected. Secondly, the faxed copy of the invoice for natural gas purchases will be destroyed upon receipt and only the mailed hard copy will be utilized for accounts payable processing. 
2003-5 COLLATERAL PLEDGES OF CASH AND INVESTMENTS Observation: At September 30, 2003, the Town had a certificate of deposit with a local finan- cial institution that was in excess of federal depositolaj insurance limits and not adequately se- cured by approximately $48,000. Recommendation: The Town should notify this financial institution to obtain adequate security pledges to cotlateralize the deposit. Management's corrective action plan: The Town has contacted the financial institution and obtained security to secure the deposit held. The Town will monitor the cash balances with the financial institution to verify on a monthly basis that the deposits held are adequately secured. The Town considers this matter resolved. 



TOWN OF WHITE CASTLE, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS For the year ended September 30, 2003 
2002-1: SEGREGATION OF DUTIES 

Prior Year Finding: For the year ended September 30, 2002, we reported that there was not sufficient segregation of duties to have effective internal control. The finding results from the small size of the administrative staff of the Town. These limitations allow no opportunity for meaningful segregation of duties. The item has been reclassified to Item 2003-1. 
2002-2: FINES Prior Year Finding: The Town's police department collects funds associated with fines. As collected, the funds are forwarded to the Town's administration department for deposit. The Town's police department maintains documentation to support the receipt of these funds. Based on our review of fine collection documentation, we discovered that the Police Department does not fully utilize the computer software program. During 2001 and 2002, the Police Department personnel maintained adequate records to recon- cile cash received with the general ledger. However, see Item 2003-2. 

2002-3 CONFISCATED GOODS INVENTORY Prior Year Finding: A physical inventory of confiscated goods maintained by the Police De partment was not performed during 2002. This finding has been reclassified to Item 2003-3. 
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Honorable Mayor and Members of the Town Council, Town of White Castle, Louisiana In planning and performing the audit of the financial statements of the Town of White Castle (the Town) for the year ended September 30, 2003, we considered its internal control to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the fmancial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control. 
However, during our audit, we became aware of a matter that is an opportunity for strengthening internal controls and operating efficiency. We have reported on the Town's internal control in our report dated November 25, 2003; this letter does not affect that report. 
We will review the status of the comment during our next audit engagement. We have discussed this comment and suggestion with certain Town personnel, and we will be pleased to discuss the comment in further detail at your convenience, to perform any additional study of the matter, or to assist you in implementing the recommendation. Our comment is summarized on Attachment A. This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Town's management, the Louisiana Legislative Auditor, and others within the organization, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. Under Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana November 25, 2003 
Certified Public Accountants 
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OPERATIONAL RECOMMENDATIONS EXPENDITURES - OR 2003-1 
Attachment A 

Observation: During the year ended September 30, 2003, budget amendments were approved increasing the General Fund appropriation by approximately $103,000. Actual expenditures exceeded the budgeted appropriation by approximately $47,000. Collectively, year-end expenditures exceeded the original budgeted appropriation by $150,000. The expenditures were funded from sales tax collections during 2003 which exceeded the original budget by approximately $125,000. The primary increase to the expenditure budget related to police deparhnent expenditures. The police department's appropriation was increased by approximately $75,000 during 2003, which represents a 20% increase over the original budget. The majority of the increases related to unexpected personnel costs, primarily overtime compensation, and operating expenditures associated with vehicles and telephones. The operating costs of the police department for the last two fiscal years have been significantly higher than previous periods. Finally, traffic fine revenue collections were below the original amount budgeted for 2003. In addition, this revenue source is significantly below historical averages. As recent as the 2000 fiscal year, fine collections were approximately $64,000 annually compared to $38,000 for 2003. 
Recommendation: The Town should give considerable attention to the current spending level of its police departnaent. In particular, the current resources anticipated are not sufficient to fund its' other public services while maintaining police department spending of approximately $475,000 a year, even with cun'ent sales tax revenues. For tbe 2004 fiscal year, budgeted expenditures of the Town's police department should be based upon conservative estimates of sales tax collections to formulate amounts available for spending. Additionally, the Town should closely monitor budget adherence throughout the fiscal year to avoid budget oven'ans. 
Management's corrective action plan: Management intends to review this recommendation during the cun'ent fiscal year. The Town will, however, maintain the appropriate attention necessary to monitor sales tax collections for potential impact to the operating budget. Additionally, the Town has expressed its concerns to the police department's leadership, but corrective action has not been forthcoming. In any event, the Town will make the changes necessary to operate in a fiscally responsible maimer. 



MULTI-YEAR BUDGETING - OR 2003-2 
Observation: The Town prepares its operating budget annually on a year to year basis. The Town should explore the concept of multi-year budgeting for financial planning purposes. In particular, observations are as follows: 
~ As stated above, the Town's Police Department has exceeded annual appropriation thresholds as established through the budget process by the Mayor and Town Council. ~ The Streets department initiated a drainage project during 2003 that required a budget amendment of $66,000. The change deals directly with expenditures during the year for additional payroll, and street and drainage projects that were anticipated by management o f the Town. Finally, the Town has not experienced significant or unexpected increases to expenditures in other departmental operations. These departments have maintained a fairly consistent level of spending for several years. On the other hand, natural gas prices have escalated in the last few years which have caused considerable strain on the Gas system users. Employee benefits, which include retireinent and health insurance, have increased significantly over the last few years with the Town fundilrg virtually all the increased costs. 
Additionally, the Town has experienced significant increases to sales tax collections over the last few years, which have exceeded historical averages. However, operating expenditures of the Town have increased to a level whereby there is a growing dependence on maintaining such sales tax collections to sustain cmTent operations, which limits the financial flexibility of the Town in the event of sales tax declines. In particular, the Town has increased expenditures primarily in its police department, which has increased animal expenditures by approximately $100,000 since 2001. 
Recommendation: The Town could consider preparing a multi-year operating budget to compare projected resources, in particular sales tax collections, to anticipated operating expenditures for the same period of time. The key consideration in this process is not the development of budgetary amounts, but the identificatinn of core concerns embraced by the Town's leadership and the use of its limited resources for application to such concerns. The purpose of this planning will be to develop a financial plan to accomplish the following: 
Estimate the levels of anticipated resources, namely sales tax collections, for the next few years. The purpose will be to define the resources available to fund operations and capital outlay, Compare expected operating expenditures, including debt retirement, and capital outlay costs to anticipated available resources as determined above. During this process, the Town would also determine its service priorities with the related expenditures. From this determination, the Town would be able to develop an operating budget based on a priority system, Develop a policy for budgetary adherence for its departments, Develop policies for the establishment of fund reserves their utilization. Develop policies for the employee benefits offered and limits to financial commitments. 



Management's corrective action plan: Management intends to review this recommendation during the current fiscal year. The Town will, however, maintain the appropriate attention necessary to monitor sales tax collections for potential impact to the operating budget. 
UTILITY FUND OPERATIONS - OR 2003-3 Observation: During the years ended September 30, 2003 and 2002, the Waterworks Utility Fund experienced net losses of approximately $24,000 and $38,000, respectively. In addition, the Sewer Fund experienced an operating loss during 2003 of apwoximately $5,700. The Fund's operating expenses have remained consistent for a number of years, but revenues generated have not been sufficient to recoup costs. 

Additionally, in the Gas Utility Fund, gas purchases by units exceeded amounts sold during 2003 by approximately 3,200 MCF's. This occurred during the previous year as well. The approximate loss of gas, in dollars, was approximately $18,500. While a portion of the difference can be attributed to reserves in the gas lines and timing differences in billing and purchasing, the more significant portion is the result of gas loss. 
Recommendation: Proprietary funds managed by municipal governments should be operated in a profitable lnalmer. We recolmnend the Town review its waterworks and sewer operations to determine the need for potential expenditure reductions or user rate increases. It appears that expenses in the waterworks fund have been stable for some time. It is more likely that the deficit will be eliminated through user fee increases. Additionally, the Town should conduct a review of gas lines and calibrate meters to attempt to reduce gas losses currently occurring. 
Management's corrective action plan: The Town is considering the following During 2003, the Town increased water user fees. It is expected that the increase will result in a more profitable operation of the Waterworks Utility Fund, During 2004, the Town will review expenses in the Sewer Utility Fund to reduce costs to alleviate the net loss sustained during 2003, The Town has an on-going program to identify gas losses, which includes calibration and replacement of meters. On an immediate basis, the Town will conduct this review to identify potential gas line losses. 


